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IN THE
UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF INDIANA
INDIANAPOLIS DIVISION

- LEBAMOFF ENTERPRISES, INC., d/b/a
CAP N' CORK, RANDY LEWANDOWSKI,
and LUTHER STRODER,

Plaintiffs,
Cause No.: 1:09-CV-0744 LIM-TAB

P. THOMAS SNOW, in his official capacity as
CHAIRMAN OF THE INDIANA ALCOHOL
& TOBACCO COMMISSION,

)
)
)
)
)
)
V. )
)
)
)
)
)
Defendant, )

CROSS-MOTION FOR SUMMARY JUDGMENT

Defendant, P. Thomas Snow, in his official capacity as Chairman of the Indiana
Alcohol & Tobacco Commission ("ATC"), by counsel, in accordance with Federal Rule
of Civil Procedure 56 and S.D. Ind. L. R. 56.1, moves the Court to grant surﬂmary
judément in his favor and against Plaintiffs on all five counts of Plaintiffs’ Complaint:

L. Plaintiffs, Lebamoff Enterprises, Inc., d/b/a Cap n' Cork, Randy Lewandowski
and Luther Stroder challenge the cqnstittltionality of Indiana Code section 7,1-3-15-3(d)
which limits the manner in which the holders of certain wine dealer permits may deliver
alcoholic beverages and seek a determination that this statute violates federal and state
law,

2. Plaintiffs have failed to establish that Indiana Code section 7.1-3-15-3(d)

violates Article 1, section 23 of the Indiana Constitution , the Equal Protection Clause of
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the United States Constitution, the Commerce Clause of the United States Constitution,

or 49 U.S.C. section14501(c)(1) of the Federal Aviation Administration Act of 1994,

3. In further support of its Cross-Motion for Summary Judgment, the ATC files

concurrently herewith its Memorandum in Support of Cross-Motion for Summary

Judgment and Response in Opposition to Plaintiffs’ Motion for Summary Judgment and

its Designation of Evidence in Support of Cross-Motion for Summary Judgment and in

Opposition to Plaintiffs’ Motion for Sumniary Judgment.

WHEREFORE, Defendant, the ATC requests that the Court:

697132-1

(1) grant its Cross-Motion for Summary Judgment

(2) deny Plaintiffs’ Motion for Summary Judgment;

(3) find in favor of the Defendant and against the Plaintiffs;

(4) and award all other appropriate relief,

GREGORY F. ZOELLER
Attorney No. 1958-98 -
Attorney General of Indiana

v 8/ Chadwick C. Duran

Chadwick C. Duran
Attorney No. 18615-53
Deputy Attorney General

Indiana Government Center South, 5th Floor
302 West Washington Street

Indianapolis, IN 46204-2770

Telephone: (317) 232-6304

E-Mail; chad.duran@atg.in.gov
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that on February 9, 2010, a copy of the foregoing was filed with
the Clerk of Court electronically, using the CM/ECF system, which sent notification of
such filing to the following;:

Robert D. Epstein

EPSTEIN COHEN DONAHOE & MENDES
50 S. Meridian Street, Suite 505
Indianapolis, IN 46204

rdepstein@aol.com

James A, Tanford

Indiana University Maurer School of Law
211 South Indiana Avenue

Bloomington, IN' 47405
tanford@indiana.edu

/(s/ Chadwick C. Duran .
Deputy Attorney General
Counsel for Defendant

Office of Attorney General

Indiana Government Center South, Fifth Floor
302 West Washington Street

Indianapolis, IN 46204-2770

Telephone: (317)232-6304

E-Mail: chad.duran@atg.in.gov

697132-1 3
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IN THE
UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF INDIANA
INDIANAPOLIS DIVISION -

LEBAMOFF ENTERPRISES, INC.,, d/b/a
CAP N' CORK, RANDY LEWANDOWSKI,
and LUTHER STRODER,

Plaintiffs, .
Cause No.: 1:09-CV-0744 LIM-TAB

)

)

)

)

)

)

V. )
)

P. THOMAS SNOW, in his official capacity as )
CHAIRMAN OF THE INDIANA ALCOHQL )
& TOBACCO COMMISSION, )
)

)

Defendant.

MEMORANDUM IN SUPPORT OF DEFENDANT’S CROSS-MOTION FOR
SUMMARY JUDGMENT AND IN OPPOSITION TO PLAINTIFFS’ MOTION FOR
SUMMARY JUDGMENT

L INTRODUCTION
Lebamoff Enterprises, Inc. d/b/a Cap N” Cork, operates 15 package liquor stores in the

greater Fort Wayne area and, in accordance with the terms the permits issued by the Indiana
Alcoholic Beverage Commission, is authorized to sell beer, wine, and liquor in a manner
consistent with the scope of their permits, Cap N’ Cork, along with two indi?idual plaintiffs,
has filed this action to challenge a narrow restriction imposed on the manner in which Cap N’
Cork is permitted to deliver one of the products it sells — wine — to consumers, Indiana Code
section 7.1-3-15-3(d) provides, in relevant part:

a wine dealer who is licensed under IC 7.1-3-10-4 may deliver wine only in

permissible containers to a customer's residence, office, or designated location.

This delivery may only be performed by the permit holder or an employee who
holds an employee permit. The permit holder shall maintain a written record of
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each delivery for at least one (1) year that shows the customer s name, location of
delivery, and quantity sold.

In addition to the face-to-face delivery requirement in Indiana Code section 7.1-3-15-3, a
separate provision in Title 7.1 contains an explicit and general ban on the direct shipment of
alcoholic beverages. Indiana code section 7.1-5-11-1.5(a) provides in relevant part:

Except as provided in IC 7.1-3-26, it is unlawful for a pefson in the business of

selling alcoholic beverages in Indiana or outside Indiana to ship or cause to be

shipped an alcoholic beverage directly to a person in Indiana who does not hold a

valid wholesaler permit under this title. This includes the ordering and selling of

alcoholic beverages over a computer network (as defined by IC 35-43-2-3(a)).
Furthermore, under the general penalty provisions of the Indiana Code section 7.1-5-1-8 a
“person who violates a provision of this title for which no other penalty is providéd commits a
Class B misdemeanor.”  Despite the clear and unambiguous language of these statutes, Cap n’
Cork began to deliver wine directly to consumers via common carrier in direct violation of the
statutory requirement that the delivery be performed by the holder of the permit or an employee
who holds an employee permit.

After receiving multiple citations for violating Indiana law, Cap N’ Cork filed a five count

complaint which challenges the face-to-face delivery requirements in fndiana Code section 7.1-
3-15-3 as violating Article 1, section 23 of the Indiana Constitution, the Equal Protection Clause

of the United States Constitution, the Commerce Clause of the United States Constitution, and 49

U.S.C. section14501(c)(1) of the Federal Aviation Administration Act of 1994. The Motion for

Summary Judgment filed by Plaintiffs, however, relies entirely on the theory that the face-to-face

limitation on delivery violates the Commerce Clause of the United States Constitution.
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II. STATEMENT OF UNDISPUTED MATERIAL FACTS

. Cap N’ Cork holds 15 active type 217 Package Liquor Store Permits issued by the

Indiana Alcohol and Tobacco Commission which authorizes it to sell beer, wine, and
liquor within the scope of its permit. (Aff. of Officer Swallow § 10, Aff, of Major

Poindexter 9 19).

. There are presently 1004 active type 217 Package Liquor Store Permits in the State of

Indiana. (Aff. of Major Poindexter q 18).

. There are presently 53 active type 305 Indiana Farm Winery Permits. (Aff, of Major

Poindexter 9 20).

. There are presently 120 active type 310 Direct Wine Seller Permits, 21 of which have

been granted to the holders of Indiana Farm Winery Permits. (Aff. of Major Poindexter q
21).

Cap N’ Cork was cited on three occasions for delivering multiple shipments of wine
outside the scope of its permit by shipping wine to Indiana consumers using a common

carrier. (Aff. of Officer Swallow 9 15-22).

. The investigation of the Indiana State Excise Police established that Cap N’ Cork was

delivering shipments of wine in violation of Indiana Code section 7.1-3-15-3(a) by
shipping wine directly to consumers using a common carrier rather than utilizing its own

employees. (Aff, of Officer Swallow 9 13).

. When this action was filed on May 19, 2009, there were active administrative

proceedings against Cap N’ Cork regarding the three citations it received. (Aff, of

Officer Swallow [ 23).
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8. On May 26, 2009, the administrative proceedings were stayed and have not been
concluded. (Aff. of Officer Swallow 24);

9. For the shipments of wine at issue in this action, Cap N’ Cork utilizes the following
business model:

a. An Indiana consumer contacts a third party “wine fulfillment company” and
places an order for the purchase of wine via phone, facsinﬁle, mail, or via the
internet. (Plaintiffs’ Brief, p. 1). Cap N’ Cork has alleged that some consumers
may place an order through Cap N’ Cork which will then work with the wine
fulfillment company. (Plaintiffs’ Brief, p. 4). Such wine fulfillment companies
include wine clubs through which wine may be ordered via the internet.’

b. The wine fulfillment company then packages and ships the wine to a licensed
Indiana wholesaler.

c. Thé licensed Indiana wholesaler then transfers the pre-packaged wine to Cap N’
Cork.

d. Cap N’ Cork then transfers the wine fo a common carrier — UPS — for delivery to
the Indiana consumer.

(Aff. of Officer Swallow Y 15-22 and Aff. Exhibits A-E) (See also Plaintiffs’ Brief, pp.
1-4).
10. Cap N’ Cork does not hold, has not applied for, and is not eligible for a Direct Wine

Seller’s Permit. (Aff. of Officer Swallow q 25).

! See, for example, the American Wine Cellars Wine Club, which maintains its website at
http://www.vinesse.com/index.cfim?s=vinesse&t=clubacwe,cfim&src=googlesearch&cfid=2826518&cftoken=31316
253 (last visited February 2, 2010). (See also, Plaintiffs’ Designation of Evidence No. 6, p. 15).

4
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1.

12.

13.

14,

15.

Employees of Cap N” Cork do not directly verify the age of the Indiana consumers who
purchase or receive alcoholic beverages shipped to them via common carrier, (Aff, of
Officer Swallow ] 17).

Employees of Cap N’ Cork are required to complete a mandatory employee training
program pursuant to Indiana Code section 7.1-3-1.5-13 One component of which
provides training on Indiana age verification requirements and preventing youth access to
alcohol. (Aff. of Major Poindexter 4 9-10).

Sales of alcoholic beverages to minors are prohibited in Indiana. All states, including
Indiana, require a consumer purchaser to verify their age prior to purchasing élcohol.
The Indiana State Excise Police and the Indiana Alcohol and Tobacco Commission have
waged and continue to wage public information campaigns to foster compliance with
Indiana’s requirement that alcoholic beverage retailers verify a purchaser’s age. (Aff. of
Major Poindexter f 5-14 and Aff. of Officer Swallow Y 4-9).

Preventing youth access to alcoholic beverages is a primary concern of the Indiana ATC
and the Indiana State Excise Police. (Aff. of Major Poindexter 9 5 and Aff. of Officer
Swallow 9 4).

An imporfant barrier to youth access to alcohol is Indiana’s general requirement that all
consumer purchases of alcoholic beverages, including wine, must be preceded by a face-
to-face transaction. The requirement that wine dealers licensed under Indiana Code
section 7.1-3-10-4 effect deliveries provides this initial face-to-face transaction and,
therefore a barrier to the purchase of alcohol by underage drinkers. (Aff. of Major

Poindexter § 6 and Aff. of Officer Swallow § 5).
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16.

17.

18.

19.

Dealer employees are required to receive server training pursuant to Indiana Code section
7.1-3-1,5. Server Training is designed to educate employees on the (i) selling; (ii)
serving; and, (iii) consumption of alcoholic beverages. Ind. Code § 7.1-3-1.5-4.3. Such
training is required to include:
methods for properly and effectively:
(1) checking the identification of an individual;
(ii) identifying an illegal identification of an individual; and
(iii) handling situations involving individuals who have
provided illegal identification
Ind. Code § 7.1-3-1.5-6(¢). (See also Aff. of Major Poindexter § 9).
Requiring deliveries to be made by the permit holder or an employee of the dealer
ensures a face-to-face transaction at which time the employee may verify age. (Aff. of
Major Poindexter 6 and Aff. of Officer Swallow § 5). -
Furthermore, every permit holder or employee of a permit holder engaged in the sale of
alcoholic beverages to consumers in Indiana is permitted by the ATC and is subject to
ATC sanctions. (Aff. of Major Poindexter § 17).
Permitting in excess of 1000 Package Liquor Store Permit holders to ship alcoholic
beverages via common carrier would create substantial additional enforcement burdens
for the Indiana State Excise Police. (Aff, of Major Poindexter §q 18, 22). The Indiana

State Excise Police consists of approximately eighty five (85) officers. During the typical

shift, there are approximately forty (40) officers in the field. (Aff. of Major Poindexter

1 3-4).
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I,  STATUTORY BACKGROUND

1. The Wine Dealer Permit: A Wine Dealer Permit authorizes the holder to sell wine or
flavored malt beverages for consumption off premises. Ind. Code § 7.1-3-15-1. A Wine Dealer
Permit is available only to the holder of a beer dealer’s permit or the holder of a liquor dealer’s
permit. Ind. Code § 7.1-3-15-2.  Only grocery stores, drug stores, and package liquor stores
are eligible to obtain a Wine Dealer Permit. See Ind. Code § 7.1-3-5-2 and Ind. Code § 7.1-3-
10-4.

If the holder of Wine Dealer Permit is a package store licensed to deal in liquor under
Indiana Code section 7.1-3-10-4 the permittee is also entitled to deliver alcoholic beverages,
including wine, to a customer’s residence, office, or designated location as described above, If
such a delivery is made the permit holder is required to maintain a written record of each
delivery for at least one (1) year that shows the customer’s name, location of the delivery, and
quantity sold. Ind, Code § 7.1-3-15-3(d). A grocery, drug store, or pharmacy is not authorized to
deliver wine in any manner whatsoever. In addition, the holder of a Wine Dealer Permit is
limited to selling no more than three (3) cases of wine to a consumer in a single transaction. Ind.
Code § 7.1-3-15-3(D).

2. The Farm Winery Permit: A Farm Winery Permit is available to any winery in any
state that sells no more than 1,000,000 gallons of wine in Indiana. See Ind. Code § 7.1-3-12-4,
The holder of a Farm Winery Permit is authorized to engage in the following transactions:

a. Sell wine directly to consumers on the winery’s premises either by the glass or by
the bottle, Ind. Code § 7.1-3-12-5(a)(3);

b. Conduct business at up to three additional locations, Ind. Code § 7.1-3-12-5(b);

c. Sell wine directly to consumers at a farmer’s market operated on a non-profit
basis, Ind, Code § 7.1-3-12-5(a)(4); and
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d. Sell wine to a holder of a wholesaler’s permit, Ind. Code § 7.1-3-12-5(a)(5).

The holder of a Farm Winery Permit is not authorized to deliver wine off-premise in any fashion,

whether delivered by an employee or not.

3. The Direct Wine Seller’s Permit: Like a Farm Winery Permit, a Direct Wine
Seller’s Permit is only available to a producer that sells no more than 1,000,000 gallons of wine a
year in Indiana. See Ind. Code § 7.1-3-26-7(a)(7). A Direct Wine Seller’s Permit holder may
then ship no more than 27,000 liters (3,000 cases) per year, in total, and up to 216 liters (24
cases) of wine per year per customer. See Ind. Code §§ 7.1-3-26-9(2)(e), 7.1-3-26-12.

Pursuant to Indiana Code § 7.1-3-26-7, the holder of a Direct Wine Seller’s Permit may
only sell and ship wine to a consumer if?

A. The consumer provides the winery with the following information in an
initial face-to-face transaction:

[. Name, telephone number, Indiana address, or Indiana business address;
2. Proof that the consumer is twenty-one years of age or older;

3. A verified statement that the consumer is twenty-one, has an Indiana
address, and intends to use the wine for personal purposes;

B. The Permit holder labels the shipping container with the following, .
“CONTAINS WINE. SIGNATURE OF PERSON AGE 21 OR OLDER REQUIRED
FOR DELIVERY”;

C. The Permit holder ships the wine using the holder of a valid carrier’s
alcoholic beverage permit;

D. The Permit holder directs the carrier to verify that the recipient is twenty-
one or older;

E. The Permit holder does not ship more than 216 liters (24 cases) of wine to
any consumer in a calendar year; and
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F. The Permit holder remits all excise, sales, and use taxes on a monthly
basis.

IV. " ARGUMENT

A. Standard for entry of summary judgment

Pursuant to Rule 56(c) of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, summary judgment is
proper if a moving party demonstrates that there is no genuine issue of material fact and that he
is entitled to judgment as a matter of law. Celotex Corp. v. Catrett, 477 U.S. 317, 324 (1986);
Anderson v. Liberty Lobby Inc., 477 U.S. 242 (1986); Certain Underwriters of Lloyd's v. General
Accident Ins. Co. of America, 909 F.2d 228, 231 (7th Cir. 1990); Walter v. Fiorénzo, 840 F.2d
427 (7th Cir. 1988); Roman v. U.S. Postal Services, 821 F.2d 382 (7th Cir. 1987). The
substantive law underlying the claim defines which facts are material and “[o]nly disputes over
facts that might affect the outcome of the suit under the governing law will properly preclude the
entry of summary judgment.” Andersoh, 477 U.S. at 248.

The party opposing a properly supported summary judgment métion cannot rely upon the
mere allegations or denials of his pleadings. If he would bear the burden at trial on the matter
that forms the basis of the motion, the opposiﬁg party must set forth specific facts showing that
there is a genuine issue for trial. Rule 56(¢), Federal Rules of Civil Procedure; Lujan v. National
Wildlife Federation, 497 U.S, 871, 884 (1990); Celotex, supra. “[T]here is no issue for trial
unless there is sufficient evidence favoring the nonmoving party for a jury to return a verdict for
that party. . .. If the evidence is merely colorable, . . . or is not significantly probative, . . .
summary judgment may be granted.” Anderson, 477 U.S, at 249-50 (éitations omitted); see
Harbor House Condominium Ass'n v. Massachusetts Bay Ins. Co., 915 F,2d 316, 320 (7th Cir.

1990); Hines v. British Steel Corp., 907 F.2d 726, 728 (7th Cir. 1990).






